
DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



 

Any person needing special accommodations to participate in the above-mentioned meeting should 

contact the Commissioner’s Office 48 hours prior to the meeting by calling (208)265-1438. 

 

 

 

Waterways Advisory Committee Minutes 
Thursday, January 16, 2025, 2:30 p.m. 
Commissioners Conference Room – 3rd Floor 

1500 Hwy 2, Ste. 338, Sandpoint, ID 83864 

 

Members Present: Matt Zoeller, Ray Pipella, Jim Brausen, Tom Trulock 

Members Absent: Molly McMahon, Doug McGeachy, Win Taylor, Forrest Schuck 

Others Present: Kerry Delair, Commissioner Korn 

 

 
Matt opened the meeting at 2:35 p.m. 

NO QUOROM  

 

Approval of the WWAB minutes from October 17, 2024, and Special Meeting minutes from December 

16, 2024. 

 

Public Comment  

• Margi Broderick – Concerns about the RR hauling hazardous waste carried on train through the 

area and concerns about geoengineering/chem trails 

 

Miscellaneous Business:  Action Items / Discussion / Decision / Recommendation 

 

A) Project 7B and Kaniksu Land Trust Presentation 

• Katie Cox, Kaniksu Land Trust 

o Working on the water trail, public access points, resources; discussed the project focusing 

on public access points/existing rights of ways with issues; discussed cable locks across 

public rights of way; would like the County to have this area surveyed to address the 

issues 

o Discussion regarding grant opportunities  

o Discussion on GIS map adding a public access layer on the water trail and working with 

the neighbors at these sites 

o Discussion regarding docks without encroachment permits and ROW validations 

B) Action Item: Vote to Support Project 7B and Kaniksu Land Trust for ROW Validation  

 

Parks & Waterways Updates/Reports 

 

A)  Matt Zoeller, Director 

 1) ORFAC Grant Update –  

There was discussion regarding the ORFAC grant, the need for a new tow vehicle, WWAB By-

Laws/Resolution, buoys, meeting frequency, and the budget. 

 

New Business:  Action Items / Discussion / Decision / Recommendation 

 

A) Action Item: Vote to Support Bonner County Waterways WIF Grant 

B) Action Item: Vote to Support City of Sandpoint Waterways WIF Grant 

There was discussion regarding the need for a Special Meeting so that there could be a vote on these time 

sensitive items.   

DRAFT



 

Any person needing special accommodations to participate in the above-mentioned meeting should 

contact the Commissioner’s Office 48 hours prior to the meeting by calling (208)265-1438. 

 

 

 

Old Business:  Action Items / Discussion / Decision / Recommendation 

 

A) Action Item: Buoy Process: A 3 Part Document. 

There was discussion regarding this process, it will be revisited when there is a quorum. 

 

Meeting was adjourned at 3:38 p.m. 

 

Next meeting:  Special Meeting 01/23/2025 @ 9:00 a.m. 

 

Deputy Clerk:  Alisa Schoeffel 
 

 

             

Approved By        Date 

DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



WIF Grant BC Waterways Maintenance Vessel Tow Vehicle Proposal Quick Facts 

Applicant: Bonner County Waterways Department 

Project: $70,000 

Match: $21,000 

Match Percent: 30% 

The project was approved and committed by the Bonner Board of County Commissioners 
in a public business meeting. 

Under the Recreational Grant Program Guidance, Waterways Improvement Fund, 
page 13 of 51, Section 2.2.2, it states funds shall be used for the protection and promotion 
of safety, waterways improvement, marking of waterways, search and rescue and all things 
incident to such purposes including the purchase of real and personal property. 

This project benefits the users who contribute to the program funds by ensuring 
Bonner County Waterways has the ability to transport their marine maintenance vessel to 
multiple water source locations within Bonner County. This includes the 1st largest lake in 
Idaho, which is also the 8th largest lake in the United States, Lake Pend Oreille. This vessel 
also services Priest Lake, which is considered many to be the "Crown Jewel" of Idaho. In 
addition, the Bonner County Waterways Department also maintains navigational markers 
around the Albeni Falls Dam, which is obligated under contract from the U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers. The Dam, when running at top capacity, allows three Kaplan generators to 
generate 42.6 megawatts. That's enough power to supply about 15,000 homes via 
Bonneville Power Administration. This vessel directly contributes to the marking of 
waterways under guidelines from the US Coast Guard.  Other projects include 
maintenance/repair of docks, navigation lights, signage, boat launches, danger buoys, no-
wake buoys, abandoned floating hazards, cleaning of restrooms etc. In the event of Search 
and Rescue, this vessel would be in support of Bonner County Marine Sheriff Department, 
which responds to all incidents within Bonner County. 

If this project does not receive funding, the Bonner County Waterways Department 
will struggle to effectively and efficiently provide services to the largest and most pristine 
waterways in north Idaho. The current maintenance vessel tow vehicle is nearly 20 years 
old, with a capacity to hold only 2 crew members. The maintenance crew for Bonner 
County typically consists of 3-4 crew members, which forces taking 2 vehicles every time 
to every launch site within the county when maintenance duties are performed. Lakes and 
launches to service these 3 major areas often include driving over 100 miles per day to 
reach project areas. Having to drive, maintain, and fuel two separate vehicles is a strain on 

DRAFT



the small budget and staff. Unfortunately, the budget in this department lacks in financial 
support to update its vehicles within its current means without support from the 
Waterways Improvement Fund grant opportunity. What makes this grant application 
unique, is that it doesn’t just apply to one user group, one entity, or one location like most 
applicants who apply to this grant. The Bonner County Waterways Department directly 
manages multiple aspects of 3 major navigable waterways, in cooperation and 
requirements set forth by multiple agencies, within the northern part of Idaho. Without 
support of this grant, navigational markers, guides, lights, and signage could fall into a state 
of disrepair. This would lead to lake navigation confusion, resource damage, and a strain to 
aid in emergency response. 

The budget for this project was arrived at upon research of past WIF Grant 
applications, which shows historically vehicles obtained have had a match value of 30%. 
Any less than this, and the project is not likely to be funded. Updating the current vehicle 
will hopefully give this project (buying a new tow vehicle) a 15 year projected lifespan. 

Attached below are approvals for this project from the Board of County 
Commissioners, Public Support, and how this project budget was decided. 

 

DRAFT



DRAFT



Bonner County Waterways Maintenance Vessel Tow Vehicle Specifications 

Average Cost: $70,000 

Crewcab 

4x4 

1 Ton Chassis 

Flatbed (Preferred) 

Dual tire axle rear end 

 

 

DRAFT



 

 

 

 

DRAFT



 

 

DRAFT



Any person needing special accommodations to participate in the above-mentioned meeting should 

contact the Commissioner’s Office 48 hours prior to the meeting by calling (208) 265-1438. 

 

Waterways Advisory Committee Agenda 
Thursday, January 16, 2025 2:30 p.m. 

Commissioners Conference Room – 3rd Floor 
1500 Hwy 2, Ste. 338, Sandpoint, ID 83864 

 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://bonnercounty.zoom.us/j/88303622656  

 

 

1) Action Item:  Discussion/Decision Regarding Approval of WWAC Minutes  

 

2) Public Comment 

 

3) Parks & Waterways Updates/Reports 

  A) Director Matt Zoeller/Kerry DeLair  

   1. ORFAC Grant Update  

   

 

4) New Business 

 Action Items / Discussion / Decision / Recommendation 

A) Action Item: Vote to Support Bonner County Waterways WIF Grant 

B) Action Item: Vote to Support City of Sandpoint Waterways WIF Grant 

 

 

5) Miscellaneous Business 

 Action Items / Discussion / Decision / Recommendation 

A) Project 7B and Kaniksu Land Trust Presentation 

B) Action Item: Vote to Support Project 7B and Kaniksu Land Trust for ROW 

Validation 

 

6) Old Business 

 Action Items / Discussion / Decision / Recommendation 

A) Action Item: Buoy Process: A 3 Part Document.  

 

 

7) Adjournment DRAFT

https://bonnercounty.zoom.us/j/88303622656


2025 Waterways Improvement Fund (WIF) Grant Application Responses 

City of Sandpoint 

Project Location: 
The project is located at City Beach Park in Sandpoint, Idaho, a heavily utilized public recreation 
area along the northern shore of Lake Pend Oreille. The boat launch facilities and the adjacent boat 
trailer parking area, which are the focus of this project, are located at 102 Bridge Street, east of the 
Sandpoint Marina and within walking distance of downtown. This site is accessible via Bridge Street 
from Highway 95 and is clearly visible on Google Earth as a key waterfront access point featuring 
two boat launches and a large adjoining parking area designated for boat trailers and tow vehicles. 

Brief Summary of Project: 
This project will improve boater access and boat trailer parking at Sandpoint’s City Beach Park as 
part of a multi-phase effort to enhance waterway access, safety, and functionality. The 2025 WIF 
grant (Phase 1) will fund the resurfacing of the parking lot that serves boaters, improving the 
durability, efficiency, and safety of this critical access point. Future phases will focus on upgrading 
the boat launches, extending concrete aprons, repairing docks and jetties, and ultimately replacing 
aging docks to ensure long-term usability. 

Program Purpose - How does this project address the stated purpose of the program? 
This project aligns with the Waterways Improvement Fund’s objectives by directly improving access 
to Lake Pend Oreille, one of Idaho’s most significant boating destinations. Phase 1 will resurface the 
primary boat trailer parking lot, addressing structural deficiencies that currently create safety 
hazards for boaters and their equipment. Subsequent phases will enhance the usability of the 
launch facilities and docks. These improvements will increase efficiency, safety, and accessibility 
for recreational and commercial boaters, supporting those who contribute to the program through 
fuel taxes and waterway use. 

Project Urgency - What will be the adverse effects if this project does not receive funding? 
Without funding, the deteriorating boat trailer parking lot at City Beach will continue to degrade, 
increasing risks to boaters navigating uneven pavement and potholes. Poor drainage in the parking 
area also exacerbates stormwater runoff into Lake Pend Oreille, negatively impacting water quality. 
Over time, worsening conditions could lead to reduced access for boaters, increased congestion, 
and the potential for costly emergency repairs. This project proactively addresses these concerns, 
ensuring continued safe access to the water while preventing long-term environmental 
degradation. 

Project Impact - Describe how the project creates new opportunities not currently available. 
This project will significantly enhance boater access to Lake Pend Oreille by improving the 
condition and functionality of the boat trailer parking lot. A newly resurfaced and properly striped 
parking area will reduce congestion, improve traffic flow, and accommodate a higher volume of 
users. 

Future project phases will extend the boat launch aprons to improve year-round usability, upgrade 
docks for safer boarding, and repair infrastructure that is beyond its serviceable lifespan. These 

DRAFT



phased improvements will ensure that Sandpoint remains a premier boating destination, increasing 
opportunities for recreational users and contributing to the local economy. 

Plan or Survey - Is this project included in an outdoor recreation plan or survey? 
Yes. The City of Sandpoint’s Parks, Recreation, and Trails Master Plan identifies the need to improve 
boat launch access and parking at City Beach. This plan calls for resurfacing the parking lot, 
implementing stormwater management measures, and upgrading launch facilities to better 
accommodate year-round use. The project also aligns with regional waterway access goals 
outlined in state and county recreation plans. 

Scope of Work - Describe what the project will accomplish and how. 
Phase 1 of the 2025 Waterways Improvement Fund (WIF) grant will focus on resurfacing the boat 
trailer parking lot to eliminate hazards such as cracks, potholes, and uneven pavement, thereby 
improving safety and usability for boaters. Additionally, this phase will enhance lot striping to 
optimize trailer parking efficiency and implement initial stormwater management features to 
mitigate runoff into Lake Pend Oreille. As part of the groundwork for future improvements, Phase 1 
will also prepare for the introduction of a paid parking and boat launching program, which will 
generate revenue to support long-term infrastructure maintenance and enhancements. 

Following the completion of Phase 1, the project will move into Phase 2, anticipated to be funded 
through a 2026 WIF grant. This stage will focus on upgrading the boat launches by extending 
concrete aprons to facilitate year-round launching, as well as repairing jetties and docks to 
enhance durability and safety. The final stage, Phase 3, scheduled for 2027, will replace the aging 
docks west of the boat launch, which have surpassed their functional lifespan. 

This structured, phased approach ensures a strategic and sustainable investment in City Beach’s 
boating infrastructure, allowing for a progressive and well-managed enhancement of these 
essential public amenities. 

Justify the Need and Demand for the Project 
Boating activity at City Beach continues to grow significantly, reflecting an increasing demand for 
improved infrastructure. In 2023, Bonner County recorded 15,934 boat registrations, generating 
over $321,000 in state revenue. Additionally, data from the Idaho State Department of Agriculture 
indicates a 40% rise in boat traffic entering the county over the past five years, further underscoring 
the need for enhanced facilities to accommodate this surge in use. 

Despite its popularity, the site currently faces several critical issues that hinder its functionality and 
safety. The boat trailer parking lot has deteriorated considerably, with cracks, potholes, and uneven 
surfaces creating hazards for users. The aging boat launches pose challenges, particularly during 
low-water conditions, making access difficult at certain times of the year. Furthermore, the docks 
west of the launch have surpassed their serviceable lifespan and require replacement to ensure 
continued safe use. 

By addressing these deficiencies through a phased approach, this project will provide safer and 
more efficient access for both local and visiting boaters. These improvements will not only enhance 
user experience but also generate sustainable revenue through planned parking and launch fees, 
ensuring the long-term maintenance and viability of the site. 

DRAFT



Maintenance and Operation - Describe provisions for ongoing maintenance and operation of 
the project. 
The City of Sandpoint’s Parks and Recreation Department will oversee the ongoing maintenance of 
the improved boat launch and parking facilities at City Beach. To ensure sustainable funding for 
these efforts, a paid parking and boat launch fee system will be introduced during Phase 1, 
generating dedicated revenue to cover maintenance costs and future improvements. 

The estimated annual maintenance budget ranges between $25,000 and $30,000, accounting for 
routine resurfacing, signage updates, and stormwater system upkeep. Additionally, City staff will 
allocate approximately 100 hours per year to maintaining vegetation and bioswale features, 
ensuring the continued effectiveness of stormwater management measures. 

These funding mechanisms will provide long-term financial sustainability for the project, allowing 
for regular upkeep and necessary enhancements without placing an additional burden on 
taxpayers. 

Obligated Matching Funds - List the source, amount, and description of matching funds. 

• Source: City of Sandpoint Parks Capital Improvement Fund 

• Amount: $100,000 

• Description: Local match for Phase 1 parking lot resurfacing, with future funding coming 
from a combination of the Parks CIP Fund and revenues generated by the planned paid 
parking and boat launch program. 

User Group Support - Describe the amount of support this project has from its associated user 
group(s). 
This project has strong support from local and regional boating organizations, marina operators, 
and business owners who recognize the importance of maintaining high-quality boat launch 
facilities. Letters of support from key stakeholders are attached. 

Attach User Group Support Letters of support below 

Project Eligibility 

Accessibility - Explain how the project complies with accessibility requirements as stated in the 
Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards, Americans with Disabilities Act Guidelines, or Uniform 
Building Code? (Include construction drawings or conceptual plans to support accessibility. Please 
do not use anything larger than 11x17 size paper.) 

This project has been designed to comply with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS), 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Guidelines, and the Uniform Building Code (UBC) to ensure 
inclusivity and ease of use for all visitors. The resurfacing of the boat trailer parking lot will eliminate 
uneven surfaces, potholes, and other hazards, making it safer and more navigable for individuals 
with mobility impairments. 

Additionally, the project will include clearly marked and appropriately dimensioned ADA-compliant 
parking spaces near the boat launch to provide direct and convenient access for persons with 
disabilities. Pathways and access routes will be designed with proper grading and slip-resistant 

DRAFT



surfaces to enhance safety and ease of movement. Future improvements to the boat launch will 
also consider the needs of individuals with disabilities, including the potential addition of adaptive 
docking features to accommodate users with mobility challenges. 

By incorporating these accessibility features, the project will ensure that all boaters and 
recreational users, regardless of physical ability, can safely and comfortably enjoy the facilities at 
City Beach. 

Attach ONLY construction drawings or conceptual plans that support the accessibility portion of 
the project 

Site Description  

Describe the site as well as the surrounding area. Explain the compatibility of the project to the site. 
(Include site location map, scale site plan including boundary and utility information, if available.) If 
the grant is for equipment, describe where it will be used (include map). Be specific. 

City Beach Park is a prominent public recreation area located on the northern shore of Lake Pend 
Oreille, offering one of the most heavily used boat launches in the region. The park is situated at 102 
Bridge Street in Sandpoint, adjacent to the downtown core and east of the Sandpoint Marina. It 
provides critical access to the lake for both recreational and commercial boaters, as well as visitors 
who utilize the waterfront for swimming, picnicking, and other outdoor activities. 

The project site includes the existing boat launch facilities and adjacent trailer parking lot, which 
are integral to the functionality of the park as a regional boating hub. The parking area is essential 
for accommodating the high volume of boaters accessing Lake Pend Oreille, and its deterioration 
has created safety concerns and congestion. The surrounding area consists of other park 
amenities, including beaches, picnic shelters, walking paths, and public restrooms, all of which 
support a wide range of recreational activities. 

The proposed improvements align seamlessly with the site’s intended use by ensuring continued, 
safe access for boaters while enhancing overall park infrastructure. The resurfacing of the boat 
trailer parking lot will improve traffic flow, increase efficiency, and address stormwater runoff 
concerns. Future phases, including boat launch and dock improvements, will further reinforce the 
park’s role as a premier water access point for the community and visitors alike. By enhancing 
existing infrastructure rather than altering the park’s natural character, this project maintains the 
site’s recreational purpose while significantly improving its usability and longevity. 

Attach site location map, scale site plan including boundary and utility information, if available. 

Project Design - Who will design and/or engineer this project? Is the person/company licensed? 

Design concepts will be developed by the City’s Parks Planning and Development Manager and our 
staff Landscape Architect. With a preliminary design in hand by summer, the City will solicit for bids 
for the final design and engineering for the Phase 1 boat trailer parking lot, after which  

Project Period - What are the intended start and completion dates? 

Phase 1 Start Date: Summer 2025 (parking lot design, including storm water, landscaping, and 
updated lighting) 

DRAFT



Completion Date: Fall/Winter 2025 (construction) 

Any remaining work will resume in Spring 2026 to ensure completion before Memorial Day. 

 

Projected Life of the Project: 
The resurfaced parking lot and associated improvements will have an estimated lifespan of 20+ 
years with proper maintenance. 

 20+ years 

Use Fee - Will a fee be charged for use of or access to this project? 
Yes. A paid parking and boat launching system will be introduced to manage demand and generate 
revenue for future maintenance and improvements. 

Public Involvement - Describe the public involvement process used in the planning of this 
project. 
Public meetings going back to 2010 during the development of a Parks, Recreation, and Trails 
Master Plan identified the need to resurface and restripe the City Beach parking lot serving boaters. 
The 2010 plan also established the community’s goal to resurface the boat launch ramps. The 
projected deadline for these projects to be completed was 2015. In 2020, with neither of the 
projects having been completed, the City undertook another Parks Master Planning process of 
community engagement that further developed a vision for repaving the City Beach parking lot and 
to move the existing boat launches to a new location.  

Now, 15 years after the 2010 plan was adopted and 5 years after the 2020 plan was adopted, the 
City is finally taking action to fulfill the community’s desire for improved boater facilities at City 
Beach. More recently, the City’s Parks & Recreation Commission has provided feedback on the 
current proposal, and other City committees have been briefed and provided feedback on the 
proposal to repave the parking facility and to begin charging for parking and boat launching at City 
Beach, a proposal included in a 2022 Parking Study and the 2024 updated Comprehensive Plan 
adopted by City Beach, both which called for implementation of a parking management plan to 
better deal with parking availability and sustainable funding of ongoing maintenance of parking and 
boat launch facilities. 

Attach necessary documentation. The applicant must include proof of public comment regarding 
the project in the application. The opportunity for public comment should begin within one (1) year 
of submitting the application. Acceptable proof may include a screenshot of a public 
announcement on your webpage or the agenda and minutes from a public meeting. Make sure that 
a date is visible within your attachment. * 

City Council Resolution approving application for the grant 

Permits  

Does this project require permits or clearances? 

Yes 

DRAFT



 No 

Please identify the permits or clearances that will be required for this project 

 Phase 1 will not require any special permitting. Additional phases, which include work on boat 
launch ramps and docks, will require permits from the US Army Corps of Engineers and the Idaho 
Department of Lands 

Environmental or NEPA. Are there any potential environmental clearances that will be required? (if 
yes, your project will not proceed until clearance has been obtained.) 

 Yes 

 No 

Please detail an environmental processes or reports needed to complete this project 

Applicant Ownership  

Describe ownership of the project site. This will ensure authorized use, project liability, 
management for the life of the project and legal responsibilities. Your project is not eligible without 
proof of ownership or a management agreement. 

The project site, City Beach Park, is owned by the City of Sandpoint. As the legal landowner, the City 
has full authority over the property, including the boat launch and trailer parking area, ensuring 
authorized use, project liability, and long-term management for the life of the project. The Parks and 
Recreation Division is responsible for overseeing all maintenance and operational activities, 
ensuring compliance with local, state, and federal regulations. 

The City’s ownership guarantees that all planned improvements will be managed and maintained in 
perpetuity, safeguarding public investment in the site’s infrastructure. Additionally, legal 
responsibilities associated with the project, including permitting, environmental compliance, and 
liability considerations, fall under the jurisdiction of the City of Sandpoint. This ensures that all 
enhancements align with established municipal policies and long-term strategic planning for 
recreational access and waterway management. 

 

 The application is for equipment/service (land ownership is not required) 

 Applicant owns land (attach a copy of Fee Simple Title - Is the deed and title clear?) 

 Applicant has a Management Agreement or Memorandum of Understanding with the legal 
landowner/management agency. (Attach copy of MOU and letter of support from landowner) 

 If ownership is different from above, describe specifically: 

It is hereby mutually agreed and understood that the use of these funds will be for the purposes 
stated in this document only and are subject to the terms of the current Idaho Department of Parks 
and Recreation's Grant Agreement for this project, as signed by the authorized individuals. It is also 
understood that the applicant will comply with the appropriate Recreation Program rules as they 

DRAFT



now exist. Applicants that receive grants involving federal funds must comply with requirements as 
outlined in the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 2 CFR Part 200. 

Responses Selected: 

 I am authorized by the applicant to pursue these grant funds 

Authorized representative details: 

The authorized representative is the individual representing the applicant with the authority to sign 
contracts and agreements. Authorized representatives are: City Agency - Mayor; County Agency - 
County Commissioner; Forest Service - Forest Supervisor, Bureau of Land Management - Area 
Supervisor, Non-Profit Organization - President 

Title 

Typed or Printed Name 

Date 

 

DRAFT


	2025 BC WIF Propasal to WWAC.pdf
	WIF Grant BC Waterways Maintenance Vessel Tow Vehicle Proposal Quick Facts
	Waterways WIF Grant App Commisioners Approval
	CostEstimateDocumentWIF2025
	BC WIF Grant Public Involvment
	Bonner County WIF Grant Public Involvment FB Post
	Bonner County WIF Grant Public Involvement



